
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

November 20, 2018, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 
 

RECOGNITION – Kathy Geist – Rural Community Leadership Program Certification and 
     Buddy Bench Project at Mary M. Knight 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 
 

1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the October 16, 2018 
MTA regular Board meeting  

2. Pg. 07: Financial Reports:  October 2018 
3. Pg. 15: Check Approval: October 11, 2018 – November 15, 2018 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg.   25:  Proposed Revised Non-Represented Compensation Plan – 
                       Resolution No. 2018-13 – ACTIONABLE 
2. Pg.   37:  Second View of 2019 Budget– DISCUSSION  
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg.   55:  Approval of 2019 Authority Board Meetings – Resolution No. 2018-15 
       – ACTIONABLE 
2. Pg.   63:  MCTAB and MTA Bylaw Changes – Resolution No. 2018-16 
                   – ACTIONABLE 
3. Pg.   87:  2019 Work Plan – DISCUSSION 
 

INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 
1. Pg.   91: Park and Ride Update 
2. Pg.   93: Management Reports 
3. Pg. 105: Operations Statistics and Reports 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
UPCOMING MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2019 Budget 

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Administration Offices 

Mason Transit Authority 
790 East Johns Prairie Road 

Shelton 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

December 18, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 
 
 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any 
type of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 
in advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
October 16, 2018 
Port of Allyn 
18560 East SR 3 
Allyn 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Kevin Shutty, Chair; Wes Martin, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Terri Drexler, Randy Neatherlin and Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: Kevin Dorcy, Deb Petersen and 
Don Pogreba  
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Bobby Joe Murray, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; 
Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; Kathy Geist, Outreach-Transit Planner; 
Beau Bakken of the North Mason Regional Fire Authority and John Piety of MCTAB.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the October 18, 2018 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be amended and approved to have new business items 3 and 4 be the new items 1 and 
2, with the original new business items 1 and 2 to follow. Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion 
carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – John Piety commended Danette Brannin on her work as General 
Manager. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of 
September 18, 2018. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for the 

period of September, 2018 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of 

September 14, 2018 through October 10, 2018 financial obligations on checks #31848 
through #31957, as presented for a total of $551,228.14. 

 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, mentioned to the Board that there was also a 
check in the amount of $96,000 payable to the City of Shelton in connection with the bus pullout 
project. 
 
Campbell/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

[None] 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Surplus Vehicle – Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, advised the 
Board that the vehicle had exceeded its normal useful life and is not being used for 
active service.  Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution 
No. 2018-14 declaring and approving the surplus and disposal of the vehicle as set forth 
therein. Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion carried. 

 
2. Intergovernmental Disposition – Fire Chief Beau Bakken of the North Mason 

Regional Fire Authority provided the Board with an overview of the evolution of the 
Mason County opioid stakeholder task force and the communication between many 
different groups that are all affected by the opioid epidemic. He also spoke of the 
partnership with Peninsula Community Health Services and grant money awarded by the 
U.S. Department of Justice’s Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Program and how the vehicle 
received via the intergovernmental disposition will be used. Moved that the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approve the sale of previously surplused Vehicle 433 as an 
intergovernmental disposition under the terms and as identified in the attached Bill of 
Sale. Neatherlin/Drexler. Motion carried. 

 
3. Electronic Board Packets – Board Clerk, Tracy Becht, summarized the benefits of the 

transition from paper copies of the Board packets to electronic tablets to be used in 
2019. Ms. Becht also described the savings in staff time, resources and less 
environmental resources being used. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board 
begin using electronic versions of its Board packets beginning in 2019 by having 
electronic devices available at all public meetings. Drexler/Neatherlin. Motion 
carried. 

 
4. Proposed Revised Non-Represented Compensation Plan – LeeAnn McNulty, 

Administrative Services Manager, discussed the changes to the previously approved 
compensation plan and that it provided for broader flexibility. The wage matrix is a 
mechanism for use as a wage placement. The Board requested additional documentation 
to see how the process would work and this item was tabled for the November 20, 2018 
Board meeting. 

 
5. First View of the 2019 Proposed Budget (Operating Only). Ms. McNulty described 

to the Board in those areas in which the proposed budget had been updated since the 
October 12 posting of the Board packet, as well as how the budget was developed. She 
inquired as to whether or not the Finance Committee would like to meet to discuss the 
budget. The Board did not feel that it was necessary as the budget was well presented 
and, with the notes that were provided, gave a good view of the budget.   

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – Ms. Brannin briefly spoke to the Board relating to the park and 
ride projects.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin provided brief highlights. 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS – [None]. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – John Piety requested that a couple of extra tablets be available for public 
use as well as paper copies. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:35 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2019 Budget 

Tuesday, October 30, 2018 at 4:30 pm 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, November 20, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 5



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 6



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 7



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 8



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 9



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 10



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 11



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 12



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 13



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 14



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 15



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 16



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 17



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 18



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 19



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 20



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 21



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 22



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 23



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 24



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Proposed Revised Non-Represented Compensation Plan 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager  
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-09, adopted by the MTA Authority Board on April 18, 
2017, the Board approved a Compensation Philosophy and Plan for non-represented 
employees. At the October 16 Board meeting, it was requested by the Board following 
the initial proposal that staff furnish additional documentation to demonstrate how the 
process would work. 
 

Additional description of the process for employee evaluations along with potential 
performance compensation criteria was added to the Non-Represented Compensation 
Plan. 
 
Staff has included the Employee Performance Appraisal and the Leadership 
Performance Appraisal forms with the compensation plan for the Board’s review. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
 
To be included in 2019 budget 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2018-13, to amend 
Resolution No. 2017-09, that initially adopted the Compensation Philosophy and Plan.  
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 26



MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY & PLAN 2019 

Board Approved:  ____________________________ 
 
 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 
 
In support of fulfilling our mission, Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a total 
compensation plan that includes salary, health benefits, life insurance, 
retirement, and a paid leave program directed toward attracting, retaining and 
rewarding a qualified and diverse workforce.  Within the boundaries of financial 
feasibility, employee compensation and benefits shall be externally competitive 
and internally equitable. 
 
COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
Current Employees 
Eligible, non-represented employees will receive an annual General Wage 
Increase (GWI) on January 1 based on the prior 12-month average of the U.S. 
Department of Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI) as of August each year. The 
maximum GWI increase will not exceed 2.25% per year. An employee whose 
wage is above the salary matrix for their job classification will receive an increase 
once the salary matrix is above the employee’s wage. 
 
An eligible employee is described as an employee who has completed their 
probation period and is not on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). 
 
An employee on a PIP who is due an increase will receive a GWI when the PIP has 
been successfully completed. The increase will not be retroactive to original 
increase date. 
 
New Employees 
The Salary Matrix will be used as the instrument in determining the hiring range 
of new employees.  Skills, knowledge and experience will also be a factor in the 
determination.   
 
New employees will receive the current year CPI increase upon successful 
completion of their probation period (minimum of six months).    
  

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 27



Worker-Drivers 
Worker-Drivers are those employees who specifically drive coaches to and from 
the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard, then work at the shipyard. Wages for the 
Worker-Drivers will receive a minimum 1% GWI annually. This will be reviewed on 
a yearly basis for adjustment. 
 
Managers 
Managers follow the guidelines established above except Managers will receive a 
minimum 1% GWI and two additional personal days.  This formula will be 
reviewed on a yearly basis. 
 
Performance Evaluation, Compensation and Completion of Probation 
Employees that exceed expectations and perform higher than expected will be 
eligible for an additional increase above CPI not to exceed 1.5%. 
 
Eligibility for an increase will be based on annual employee performance 
evaluations. and supported through the annual budget process.  
 
Employee evaluations are to take place each March, with potential performance 
compensation increases effective April 1 each year. 
 

Summary of Performance Scoring Criteria 
• An employee must receive at least eight (8) Exceeds Expectations on 

the Employee Performance Appraisal (11 categories available) or five 
(5) Exceeds Expectations on the Leadership Performance Appraisal (7 
categories available) to be eligible for a performance compensation 
increase. 

• An employee receiving a Needs Improvement rating in any area on 
the performance appraisal would not qualify for a performance 
compensation increase. 

• An employee on a PIP would not qualify for a performance 
compensation increase. 

• The manager of the department will recommend a performance 
increase for an employee if applicable. 

• Administrative Services Manager and General Manager will review 
and approve recommended increases prior to the employee 
evaluation meeting. 

 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:
 0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 28



Upon completion of probation, an new employees may receive an increase of up 
to 1% based on performance in addition to the current year CPI. 
 
General Manager 
The annual salary of the General Manager will be determined by the Mason  
Transit Authority Board. 
 
Compensation Plan Review 
TA review of the entire compensation plan may be reviewed annually but at a 
minimum the plan will be reviewed of every three years. 
 
Examples of a Successful Employee’s Performance: 

• Meets job expectations and job description 
• Is timely – arrives to work on time; returns from breaks and lunch on time 
• Gets along with co-workers; resolves conflicts 
• Adheres to guiding principles 
• Performs work safely 
• Is accurate in work products produced 

 
 
Examples of an Exceeds Expectations Employee’s Performance: 

• Above qualities listed plus  
o Solution orientated; brings a solution to a problem 
o Volunteers for extra duty and projects; puts in extra time  
o Seldom misses work unscheduled 
o Willing to learn and take on extra duties 
o Proactive approach; does not need a lot of guidance 
o Sets an example for others; exhibits leadership qualities regardless of 

position 
o Mentors others 

 
The above lists are not meant to be exhaustive and are meant to provide 
examples of qualities an evaluator would consider when appraising an employee. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:
 0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:
 0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at:
 0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 29



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 30



Resolution No. 2018-13 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 BY ADOPTING AND APPROVING 

AN AMENDED COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY AND PLAN. 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2017-09, adopted on April 18, 2017, the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approved and adopted a Compensation Philosophy and Plan of 
non-represented employees; and 

 WHEREAS, MTA staff proposes that the plan be updated to provide the ability to apply 
a portion of compensation based on performance exceeding expectations as measured in the 
annual performance appraisal process, as well as authorizing the Board with the ability to set 
the salary of the General Manager;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that Resolution No. 2017-09 be amended by adopting and approving the attached 
amended Compensation Philosophy and Plan. 
 

Adopted this 20th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 31



Resolution No. 2018-13 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 32



1 
 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY & PLAN 2019 

Board Approved:  ____________________________ 
 
 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 
 
In support of fulfilling our mission, Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a total 
compensation plan that includes salary, health benefits, life insurance, 
retirement, and a paid leave program directed toward attracting, retaining and 
rewarding a qualified and diverse workforce.  Within the boundaries of financial 
feasibility, employee compensation and benefits shall be externally competitive 
and internally equitable. 
 
COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
Current Employees 
Eligible, non-represented employees will receive an annual General Wage 
Increase (GWI) on January 1 based on the prior 12-month average of the U.S. 
Department of Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI) as of August each year. The 
maximum GWI increase will not exceed 2.25% per year. An employee whose 
wage is above the salary matrix for their job classification will receive an increase 
once the salary matrix is above the employee’s wage. 
 
An eligible employee is described as an employee who has completed their 
probation period and is not on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). 
 
An employee on a PIP who is due an increase will receive a GWI when the PIP has 
been successfully completed. The increase will not be retroactive to original 
increase date. 
 
New Employees 
The Salary Matrix will be used as the instrument in determining the hiring range 
of new employees.  Skills, knowledge and experience will also be a factor in the 
determination.   
 
New employees will receive the current year CPI increase upon successful 
completion of their probation period (minimum of six months).    
  

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 33



2 
 

Worker-Drivers 
Worker-Drivers are those employees who specifically drive coaches to and from 
the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard, then work at the shipyard. Wages for the 
Worker-Drivers will receive a minimum 1% GWI annually. This will be reviewed on 
a yearly basis for adjustment. 
 
Managers 
Managers follow the guidelines established above except Managers will receive a 
minimum 1% GWI and two additional personal days.  This formula will be 
reviewed on a yearly basis. 
 
Performance Evaluation, Compensation and Completion of Probation 
Employees that exceed expectations and perform higher than expected will be 
eligible for an additional increase above CPI not to exceed 1.5%. 
 
Eligibility for an increase will be based on annual employee performance 
evaluations and supported through the annual budget process. 
 
Employee evaluations are to take place each March, with potential performance 
compensation increases effective April 1 each year. 
 

Summary of Performance Scoring Criteria 
• An employee must receive at least eight (8) Exceeds Expectations on 

the Employee Performance Appraisal (11 categories available) or five 
(5) Exceeds Expectations on the Leadership Performance Appraisal (7 
categories available) to be eligible for a performance compensation 
increase. 

• An employee receiving a Needs Improvement rating in any area on 
the performance appraisal would not qualify for a performance 
compensation increase. 

• An employee on a PIP would not qualify for a performance 
compensation increase. 

• The manager of the department will recommend a performance 
increase for an employee if applicable. 

• Administrative Services Manager and General Manager will review 
and approve recommended increases prior to the employee 
evaluation meeting. 

 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 34



3 
 

Upon completion of probation, a new employee may receive an increase of up to 
1% based on performance in addition to the current year CPI. 
 
General Manager 
The annual salary of the General Manager will be determined by the Mason  
Transit Authority Board. 
 
Compensation Plan Review 
The compensation plan may be reviewed annually but at a minimum the plan will 
be reviewed every three years. 
Examples of a Successful Employee’s Performance: 

• Meets job expectations and job description 
• Is timely – arrives to work on time; returns from breaks and lunch on time 
• Gets along with co-workers; resolves conflicts 
• Adheres to guiding principles 
• Performs work safely 
• Is accurate in work products produced 

 
 
Examples of an Exceeds Expectations Employee’s Performance: 

• Above qualities listed plus  
o Solution orientated; brings a solution to a problem 
o Volunteers for extra duty and projects; puts in extra time  
o Seldom misses work unscheduled 
o Willing to learn and take on extra duties 
o Proactive approach; does not need a lot of guidance 
o Sets an example for others; exhibits leadership qualities regardless of 

position 
o Mentors others 

 
The above lists are not meant to be exhaustive and are meant to provide 
examples of qualities an evaluator would consider when appraising an employee. 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 35



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 36



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 2 – Discussion 
Subject:    Second Draft of 2019 Budget  
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
A first view of the proposed 2019 budget was provided to the Board at the October 16, 
2018 meeting. Since that version of the budget, the following items have been 
modified: 
 

• Inclusion of additional $9,810 LMTAAA grant revenue 
• Reduction of expense on actual WSTIP insurance quote based on a reconciliation 

of our mileage unit exposure for the 2019 calculation. 
• Inclusion of anticipated $2,500 expense to repair commercial freezers at T-CC 
• Minor wage adjustments  

 
2019 Labor and Industries Workers Comp rates remain outstanding. Rates should be 
received in early December, before final board approval.  This expense is currently 
estimated on the high side. 
 
This second draft has projected revenue at $7,881,693 and expenses of $7,841,676 
including a $120,000 allowance to Pooled Reserves.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
None at this time. 
 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
None at this time. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 37



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 38



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 39



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 40



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 41



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 42



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 43



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 44



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 45



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 46



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 47



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 48



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 49



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 50



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 51



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 52



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 53



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 54



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    2019 MTA Regular Board Meeting Calendar 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The attached proposed 2019 Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting calendar is 
provided for your review. The Port of Allyn has confirmed that the conference room is 
available for use by Mason Transit Authority at its April and October meetings. 
 
The continued alternate location for two meetings annually at the Port of Allyn provides 
the public with a more central Mason County location and continued predictability for 
the Board and MTA staff in attending the meetings. 
 
Additionally, there is no rental fee or charge to hold the meetings at the Port of Allyn. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2018-15 establishing 
the 2019 schedule of regular MTA Authority Board meetings.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 55



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 56



 
 
 
 
 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
2019 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

(Adopted by Resolution No. 2018-15 on November 20, 2018) 
 
 

 

TIME DATE MONTH LOCATION 

4:00 P.M. 15 January MTA Transit-Community Center, 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 February MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 March MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 April Port of Allyn, 
18560 E SR 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 21 May MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 18 June MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 July MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 August MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 

 
4:00 P.M. 17 September MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 15 October Port of Allyn, 
18560 E SR 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 19 November MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 17 December MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

 
 

MTA Administrative Office: 790 East Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584 
Phone: 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
Clerk of the Authority E-mail: clerk@masontransit.org 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 57

mailto:clerk@masontransit.org


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 58



Resolution No. 2018-15 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-15 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ESTABLISHING THE 2019 SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR THE 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board holds regular monthly meetings on the 

3rd Tuesday of each month that are open to the public; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the need exists to establish a published schedule of said meetings;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the regular monthly meetings for the 2019 calendar year be held at the times and 
locations as outlined on the attached schedule. Meeting changes and special meetings will be 
published as required by law. 
 

Adopted this 20th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 59



Resolution No. 2018-15 Page 2 of 2 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 60



 
 
 
 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
2019 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

(Adopted by Resolution No. 2018-15 on November 20, 2018) 
 
 

 

TIME DATE MONTH LOCATION 

4:00 P.M. 15 January MTA Transit-Community Center, 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 February MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 March MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 April Port of Allyn, 
18560 E SR 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 21 May MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 18 June MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 July MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 August MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 

 
4:00 P.M. 17 September MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 15 October Port of Allyn, 
18560 E SR 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 19 November MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 17 December MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

 
 

MTA Administrative Office: 790 East Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584 
Phone: 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
Clerk of the Authority E-mail: clerk@masontransit.org 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 61

mailto:clerk@masontransit.org


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 62



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:    MCTAB and MTA Bylaw Changes  
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
During the past four years, the Mason County Transportation Advisory Board (MCTAB) 
has been on hiatus and more recently, there have been efforts to meet and begin 
assigning projects, the first of which was to update the MCTAB Bylaws. Unfortunately, 
there have not been enough attendees to establish a quorum at the MCTAB meetings, 
elect officers or update the MCTAB bylaws and therefore MTA has not been able to 
move ahead with a viable citizen’s advisory board. 
 
MTA values citizen input and comment as evident by having open houses, Community 
Conversations and public hearings in various locations as well as conducting surveys for 
service improvements and other matters. MTA has an Outreach Plan as part of the DBE 
policy to outline how MTA will reach out to citizens and has an Outreach/Transit Planner 
on staff to fulfill the outreach mission.  
 
Since the previous MCTAB model is no longer effective, we suggest that we have a non-
voting citizen selected and be present at the Authority Board meetings so that citizen 
comment can be provided to the Authority Board as a part of its business meetings. 
 
A track changes version of the MTA Bylaws contains provisions for this new suggested 
model of voluntary citizen participation. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that Mason County Transportation Area Authority Board approve Resolution 
No. 2018-16 and the attached Bylaws, as amended.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 63



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 64



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 1 
 

MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA 
 DOING BUSINESS AS MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BYLAWS 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

III. POWERS, RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

IV. AUTHORITY COMPOSITION 
 4.1 Board Composition 
 4.2 Non-Voting Labor Representative 
 4.3 Non-Voting Representative of the Public 

 
V. MEETINGS 

 5.1 Regular Meetings 
 5.2 Special Meetings 
 5.3 Attendance at Meetings 
 5.4 Public Hearings 
 5.5 Meeting Notices 
 5.6 Quorum 
 5.7 Chair 
 5.8 Conduct of Meetings 
 5.9 Order of Business and Agenda 
 5.1 Voting/Authority Decisions 
 5.11 Meeting Minutes 
 5.12 Resolutions 
 5.13 Compensation 

 
VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

 6.1 Election 
 6.2 Term 
 6.3 Duties 

 
VII. COMMITTEES 

 7.1 Authority Committees 
 7.2 Special Appointments 

 
VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 

 8.1 General Manager 
 8.2 Clerk of the Board 
 8.3 Legal Counsel 
 8.4 Non-Voting Representative of the Public 

 
IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Checks 
9.2 Notes 
9.3 Other Legal Documents 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 65



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 2 
 

 
IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS (cont’d) 

9.4 Deposits 
9.5 Gifts 
9.6 Travel 
9.7 Repealer 

 
X. AMENDMENTS 

 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area is the public 
transportation agency which serves the citizens of Mason County including 
the only incorporated city, Shelton, Washington. 
 
In 1989 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and the City 
of Shelton met in a public transportation improvement conference and 
formally established the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
under the laws of the state of Washington (RCW 36.57A).  In November 1991 
voters approved an initiative allowing for the collection of a sales tax to 
support public transportation. 
 
In February, 2008 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and 
the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement Conference 
(PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and adopted a resolution 
changing the composition to a nine member Board.  
 
In November, 2017, representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County 
and the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement 
Conference (PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and put forth 
recommendations to the County and City Commissioners that the Board 
composition be as follows: 
 
 Three (3) Mason County Commissioners; 
 
 One (1) City of Shelton Councilmember; and 
 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts. The 
recommendation was approved by Mason County and the City of Shelton 
pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 1112-1217, respectively. 

 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 66



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 3 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

The name of the public transportation benefit area shall be Mason County 
Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason Transit 
Authority.  The governing board of which shall be called the Mason Transit 
Authority Board hereinafter referred to as “Authority Board”.  The principal 
address of Mason Transit Authority shall be 790 East Johns Prairie Road, 
Shelton, Washington.  The Mason Transit Authority may have such other 
offices, within Mason County, as the Authority Board may determine from 
time to time. 
 
 

III. POWERS 
 

The Authority shall be responsible for establishing and monitoring the policies 
of the Mason Transit Authority, its budget and its service levels.  The 
Authority Board shall also oversee the performance of the General Manager 
of Mason Transit Authority.  Nothing in these bylaws is intended to limit the 
general powers of the Authority Board; the Authority Board retains all powers 
granted to it under the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
 

IV. AUTHORITY BOARD COMPOSITION 
 

4.1  Board Composition.  Effective January 1, 20189, the Authority 
Board will consist of a governing board of nine (9) voting members; and one 
(1) who is a non-voting labor organization representative and there may be 
one (1) representative of the public, also a non-voting advisor to the board 
member, set forth as follows: 
 
• Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners, 
• One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton Council, 
• Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts; and  

• One (1) ex officio non-voting labor union representative pursuant to 
Section 4.2 below; and 

• One (1) ex officio non-voting representative of the public residing in 
Mason County, Washington. 

 
The members of the Authority Board shall serve four year terms. Vacancies 
through resignation or disqualification shall be filled by the County 
Commission to fill the unexpired term. Mason County shall provide to the 
Clerk of the Board minutes of the County Commissioner meeting documenting 
the motion or adoption of a resolution of the elected official selected by the 
County Commissioners to serve on the Authority Board. 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 67



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 4 
 

 
4.2  Non-Voting Labor Representative. In accordance with revisions 
made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) non-voting labor 
representative recommended by the labor organization representing the 
public transportation employees. The non-voting member shall comply with 
all governing bylaws and policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or 
Vice Chair of the Mason Transit Authority Board will exclude the non-voting 
member from attending any executive session held for the purpose of 
discussing negotiations with labor organizations. The Chair or Vice Chair shall 
also have the ability to exclude the non-voting member from attending any 
other executive session. 
 
4.3  Non-Voting Representative of the Public. There may be one (1) 
non-voting representative of the public as set forth in Section 8.4 below. The 
non-voting member shall serve for a period of one year (unless extended by 
motion by the Authority Board), and comply with all governing bylaws and 
policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or Vice Chair of the Mason 
Transit Authority Board shall exclude the non-voting member from attending 
any executive session.  
   

V. MEETINGS 
 

5.1  Regular Meetings.  All meetings of the Authority Board shall be open 
to the public except to the extent that executive sessions are authorized by 
law.  Regular meetings of the Authority Board will be held once each month 
at designated locations at a time and date established by resolution. 
 
5.2  Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called at any time by the 
Chair or by a majority of the whole Authority Board, provided that each 
member receives personally or by mail written notice of the date, time and 
place of the meeting and the matters to be taken at the meeting at least 24 
hours in advance. 
 
5.3  Attendance at Meetings.  Board members may participate 
electronically in all or part of a board meeting, including voting if: 
1)  All persons participating in the meeting are able to hear each other at the 
same time, such as by the use of speaker-phone or computer internet 
conferencing technology; and 
2)  The board member participating electronically shall have reviewed all of 
the applicable material and participated in the relevant portion of the board 
meeting regarding the topic to which the board member is voting on.  
 
5.4 Public Hearings.  Public hearings may be scheduled by the Authority 
Board at such time and at such place as the Authority Board determines to be 
appropriate to specifically solicit, public comment on certain issues.  Such 
issues may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 68



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 5 
 

• a change in any transit fare 
• a substantial change in transit service 
• a presentation of the annual budget 
• Federal Transit Administration grant applications 

 
Public notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in advance unless otherwise 
required by Federal or State regulations. 
  
 
5.5  Meeting Notices.  Notices of changes in the time or place of regular 
meetings or the call for a special meeting or public hearing will be provided to 
the official local newspaper(s) of general circulation and to any publications, 
television cable access or radio stations which have on file with the Clerk of 
the Board a written request to be so notified.  Such call or notice shall be 
delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be 
transacted, provided that notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in 
advance of public hearings, unless otherwise required. 
 
The Shelton-Mason County Journal is designated as the official newspaper of 
the Authority Board for the purpose of publication of legal notices and 
dissemination of public information announcements. 
 
5.6  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Authority Board, five (5) voting 
members of the Authority Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business, unless there are position vacancies, in which case a majority of 
the filled positions shall constitute a quorum. 
 
5.7  Chair.  The Chair shall open and preside at all meetings of the Authority 
Board.  In the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to preside, the Vice 
Chair shall assume the duties of presiding over the meetings of the Authority 
Board; provided, however, if the Chair is to be permanently unable to 
preside, the Authority Board shall select a new Chair for the remainder of the 
Chair’s term. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice Chair, the 
member having served on the Authority Board the longest shall serve as 
acting Chair. 
 
5.8  Conduct of Meetings.  Unless otherwise governed by the provisions of 
these Bylaws, the laws of the State of Washington or Authority Board 
resolution, Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised) shall govern the conduct of 
the Authority’s meetings.  It is the intent of the Authority to conduct the 
business in an open environment consistent with the Washington State Open 
Public Meetings Act. 
 
5.9  Order of Business and Agenda.  An order of business at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings shall be established on a meeting-by-

Formatted: Keep with next

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 69



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 6 
 

meeting basis according to the issues requiring discussion in any particular 
month.  Prior to the regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board will confer with 
the Chair on items of discussion.  The Clerk will prepare a written agenda 
including appropriate attachments, and will distribute to all members as soon 
as possible prior to the meeting but not less than 48 hours before the 
meeting. 
 
5.10  Voting/Authority Decisions.  Every voting member of the Authority 
Board shall be entitled to one vote on all issues before the Authority Board.  
All members present may vote or abstain; and abstention shall be recorded 
but will not be counted.  The act of the majority of the members present at a 
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Authority Board, 
unless a greater number is required by law.  Any member may require that 
the vote of each member on a particular matter be recorded in the minutes, 
in which case a roll call will be taken. 
 
5.11  Meeting Minutes.  The proceedings of all Authority Board meetings 
and public hearings shall be recorded and maintained and shall contain an 
accurate accounting of the Authority Board’s official action with reference to 
all matters properly before it and any public comments made.  Minutes of the 
meetings shall be provided to each Authority Board member as soon as 
practicable following each meeting.  The official copy for each meeting shall 
be approved by the Authority Board and signed by the Chair and the Clerk of 
the Board.  The official minutes of the meeting shall become a part of the 
permanent records file, maintained by the Clerk. 
 
5.12  Resolutions.  The Authority Board may require that certain actions be 
documented by way of a formal resolution, which shall be prepared by the 
Clerk and shall be approved as to form by the Legal Counsel.  Resolutions 
shall also be signed by the Chair and will be numbered, incorporated in the 
minutes, and made part of the permanent records file. 
 
5.13  Compensation.  Members of the Authority Board and non-voting 
labor representative only shall be paid compensation for attendance at 
regular and special Authority Board meetings and at any official Authority 
Board Committee meetings, not to exceed 36 such meetings per year, unless 
authorized by the Board and in no event more than 75.  Compensation shall 
be no more than the maximum rate authorized by RCW 36.57A.050 as 
presently enacted or as may be hereafter amended; provided that 
compensation shall not be paid to an elected official who is receiving regular 
full-time compensation from such government for attending such meetings.  
Any change to this rate shall require a two-thirds majority vote by the 
Authority Board. 
 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 70



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 7 
 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

6.1  Election.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be members of the Authority 
Board elected by the members by majority vote at a regular or special 
meeting of the Authority.  
 
6.2  Term.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the 
members at the first meeting in December of each year, unless it is 
determined by the Authority Board that it is in the best interest of the 
Authority Board the election should be extended in one month increments.  
In the event either becomes vacant, the members shall elect a new officer at 
the next regular meeting to serve until the next December meeting. 
 
6.3  Duties.  In addition to the powers and the duties granted by these 
Bylaws, the Chair shall have such other powers and duties as prescribed by 
law or by resolution of the Authority Board. 
 
In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the 
Chair, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all 
the restrictions upon the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall perform other duties as 
may be assigned to him or her by the Chair or by the Authority. 
 
 

VII. COMMITTEES  
 
7.1  Authority Board Committees.  In order to better facilitate the work of 
the Authority Board, the Authority Board may establish standing and/or ad 
hoc committees to address specific issues.  Each committee shall be 
composed of not more than three (3) Authority members; one member 
representing the City of Shelton, one member representing Mason County, 
and one member representing a District.  Committee Chairs and committee 
members may be designated by the Authority Chair, subject to confirmation 
by the full Authority Board.  To the extent possible, committee reports to the 
full Authority Board shall be in writing. 
 
The terms of the standing committees will coincide with the terms of the 
Authority Board officers (which recommence annually in December) at which 
time the Authority Board will review the responsibilities of the committees.  In 
the event that new committee assignments are not made at the time 
Authority Board officers are elected, the incumbent committee members shall 
serve until replacements are appointed. 
 
7.2  Special Appointments.  The Chairman may appoint Authority Board 
members to special intra- and interagency committees and councils as 
appropriate.  
 

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 71



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 8 
 

These special appointments will be reviewed annually to coincide with the 
terms of the Authority Board officers and the review of Authority Board 
committees. 
 
 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 
 
8.1  General Manager.  The Authority Board shall appoint a General 
Manager who shall be responsible for the administrative functions of the 
Mason Transit Authority and shall have such power and perform such duties 
as shall be prescribed by law and action of the Authority Board. 
 
8.2  Clerk of the Authority Board.  The Authority shall appoint a Clerk of 
the Authority Board who shall perform all duties as provided in these Bylaws 
and shall maintain all records of the Authority Board.  The General Manager 
shall serve as Clerk unless someone else has been specifically appointed. 
 
8.3  Legal Counsel.  Principal Legal Counsel shall be appointed by and shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Authority Board. 
 
8.4  Non-Voting Adviser Member ofto the Authority Board 
Representing Public.  Applications from the public may be submitted to the 
voting Authority Board for selection and appointment, and shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Authority Board. If no applications are submitted, the position 
shall cease and close. 
 
 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

9.1  Checks.  All disbursements of the Mason Transit Authority shall be by 
check drawn by the appropriate Audit Officer as per Washington State law or 
as otherwise directed by Authority resolution. 
 
9.2  Notes.  All notes or other evidence of indebtedness, including bills, 
issued or incurred in the name of the Mason Transit Authority shall be signed 
by such officer, member, agent or employee of the Mason Transit Authority 
and in such manner as shall from time to time to be determined by Authority 
Board resolution. 
 
9.3  Other Legal Documents.  The Authority may authorize any officer or 
officers, agent or agents of the Mason Transit Authority, in addition to the 
officers so authorized by resolution, to enter into any contract or execute and 
deliver any instrument in the name of and behalf of the Mason Transit 
Authority and such authorization may be general and or may be confined to 
specific instances.  All written contractual obligations of the Mason Transit 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 72



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 9 
 

Authority, including but not limited to, contracts, leases and assignments, are 
to be maintained by the Clerk of the Board. 
 
9.4  Deposits.  All funds of the Mason Transit Authority shall be deposited in 
the appropriate accounts established by resolution.  The County Treasurer 
shall be the custodian of the funds, until such time as the Authority Board 
appropriates its own administrative director, and is, subject to approval by 
Authority Board resolution, authorized to invest such funds in the manner 
provided by law. 
 
9.5  Gifts.  The Authority Board may accept on behalf of Mason Transit 
Authority any contribution, gift or bequest (as long as conditions are 
consistent with state law), for any purpose of the Mason Transit Authority. 
 
9.6  Travel.  Members of the Authority Board, in order to properly and fully 
conduct official Mason Transit Authority business, may travel and incur 
expenses.    Authority Board members will receive reimbursement for 
reasonable expenses incurred while engaged in official business in 
accordance with RCW 36.57A.050 and the adopted travel policy which applies 
to all Mason Transit Authority employees.  Out-of-state travel by Authority 
Board members will be authorized by the Chair subject to annual budget 
restraints. 
 
9.7  Repealer.  The terms of these bylaws, as established by resolution, 
shall supersede all prior resolutions in conflict therewith. 
 
 

X. AMENDMENTS 
 

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the 
Authority Board, provided that copies of the proposed revisions or 
amendments shall have been made available to each Authority Board 
member as part of the agenda of the meeting at which proposed revisions or 
amendments are to be acted upon. These bylaws are adopted by Authority 
Board resolution; therefore, any amendments hereto shall be by that same 
instrument. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 12/09/91   AMENDED:  04/17/2012 
AMENDED:   11/20/07   AMENDED:  12/17/2013 
AMENDED:   02/28/08   AMENDED:  09/20/2016 
AMENDED: 07/13/10   AMENDED: 12/19/2017 
       AMENDED: 11/20/2018 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 73



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 74



Resolution No. 2018-16 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD APPROVING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS OF MASON COUNTY PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA DOING BUSINESS AS MASON 

TRANSIT AUTHORITY. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area Authority (the 
“Authority”) first adopted its Bylaws on December 9, 1991, and amended those Bylaws on 
November 20, 2007, February 28, 2008, July 13, 2010, June 14, 2011, April 17, 2012, 
December 17, 2013, September 20, 2016 and December 19, 2017;  

WHEREAS, repeated efforts have been made without success to hold a meeting 
containing a quorum so as to elect MCTAB officers and update its Bylaws;  

WHEREAS, the Authority Board values input from the citizens it serves and believe 
this new model of citizen participation to be one that will have more success in achieving the 
goal of citizen participation; and  

WHEREAS, the Bylaws should now be amended to make provision for a Mason County 
citizen to participate in the Authority Board meetings as a non-voting Authority Board member;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON COUNTY PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that its Bylaws are hereby amended as 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Adopted this 20th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 75



Resolution No. 2018-16 Page 2 of 2 
 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 76



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 1 
 

MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA 
 DOING BUSINESS AS MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BYLAWS 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

III. POWERS, RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

IV. AUTHORITY COMPOSITION 
 4.1 Board Composition 
 4.2 Non-Voting Labor Representative 
 4.3 Non-Voting Representative of the Public 

 
V. MEETINGS 

 5.1 Regular Meetings 
 5.2 Special Meetings 
 5.3 Attendance at Meetings 
 5.4 Public Hearings 
 5.5 Meeting Notices 
 5.6 Quorum 
 5.7 Chair 
 5.8 Conduct of Meetings 
 5.9 Order of Business and Agenda 
 5.1 Voting/Authority Decisions 
 5.11 Meeting Minutes 
 5.12 Resolutions 
 5.13 Compensation 

 
VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

 6.1 Election 
 6.2 Term 
 6.3 Duties 

 
VII. COMMITTEES 

 7.1 Authority Committees 
 7.2 Special Appointments 

 
VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 

 8.1 General Manager 
 8.2 Clerk of the Board 
 8.3 Legal Counsel 
 8.4 Non-Voting Representative of the Public 

 
IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Checks 
9.2 Notes 
9.3 Other Legal Documents 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 77



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 2 
 

 
IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS (cont’d) 

9.4 Deposits 
9.5 Gifts 
9.6 Travel 
9.7 Repealer 

 
X. AMENDMENTS 

 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area is the public 
transportation agency which serves the citizens of Mason County including 
the only incorporated city, Shelton, Washington. 
 
In 1989 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and the City 
of Shelton met in a public transportation improvement conference and 
formally established the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
under the laws of the state of Washington (RCW 36.57A).  In November 1991 
voters approved an initiative allowing for the collection of a sales tax to 
support public transportation. 
 
In February, 2008 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and 
the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement Conference 
(PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and adopted a resolution 
changing the composition to a nine member Board.  
 
In November, 2017, representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County 
and the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement 
Conference (PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and put forth 
recommendations to the County and City Commissioners that the Board 
composition be as follows: 
 
 Three (3) Mason County Commissioners; 
 
 One (1) City of Shelton Councilmember; and 
 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts. The 
recommendation was approved by Mason County and the City of Shelton 
pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 1112-1217, respectively. 

 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 78



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 3 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

The name of the public transportation benefit area shall be Mason County 
Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason Transit 
Authority.  The governing board of which shall be called the Mason Transit 
Authority Board hereinafter referred to as “Authority Board”.  The principal 
address of Mason Transit Authority shall be 790 East Johns Prairie Road, 
Shelton, Washington.  The Mason Transit Authority may have such other 
offices, within Mason County, as the Authority Board may determine from 
time to time. 
 
 

III. POWERS 
 

The Authority shall be responsible for establishing and monitoring the policies 
of the Mason Transit Authority, its budget and its service levels.  The 
Authority Board shall also oversee the performance of the General Manager 
of Mason Transit Authority.  Nothing in these bylaws is intended to limit the 
general powers of the Authority Board; the Authority Board retains all powers 
granted to it under the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
 

IV. AUTHORITY BOARD COMPOSITION 
 

4.1  Board Composition.  Effective January 1, 2019, the Authority 
Board will consist of a governing board of nine (9) voting members; one (1) 
who is a non-voting labor organization representative and there may be one 
(1) representative of the public, a non-voting advisor to the board , set forth 
as follows: 
 
• Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners, 
• One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton Council, 
• Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts;  

• One (1) ex officio non-voting labor union representative pursuant to 
Section 4.2 below; and 

• One (1) non-voting representative of the public residing in Mason County, 
Washington. 

 
The members of the Authority Board shall serve four year terms. Vacancies 
through resignation or disqualification shall be filled by the County 
Commission to fill the unexpired term. Mason County shall provide to the 
Clerk of the Board minutes of the County Commissioner meeting documenting 
the motion or adoption of a resolution of the elected official selected by the 
County Commissioners to serve on the Authority Board. 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 79



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 4 
 

 
4.2  Non-Voting Labor Representative. In accordance with revisions 
made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) non-voting labor 
representative recommended by the labor organization representing the 
public transportation employees. The non-voting member shall comply with 
all governing bylaws and policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or 
Vice Chair of the Mason Transit Authority Board will exclude the non-voting 
member from attending any executive session held for the purpose of 
discussing negotiations with labor organizations. The Chair or Vice Chair shall 
also have the ability to exclude the non-voting member from attending any 
other executive session. 
 
4.3  Non-Voting Representative of the Public. There may be one (1) 
non-voting representative of the public as set forth in Section 8.4 below. The 
non-voting member shall serve for a period of one year (unless extended by 
motion by the Authority Board), and comply with all governing bylaws and 
policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or Vice Chair of the Mason 
Transit Authority Board shall exclude the non-voting member from attending 
any executive session.  
   

V. MEETINGS 
 

5.1  Regular Meetings.  All meetings of the Authority Board shall be open 
to the public except to the extent that executive sessions are authorized by 
law.  Regular meetings of the Authority Board will be held once each month 
at designated locations at a time and date established by resolution. 
 
5.2  Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called at any time by the 
Chair or by a majority of the whole Authority Board, provided that each 
member receives personally or by mail written notice of the date, time and 
place of the meeting and the matters to be taken at the meeting at least 24 
hours in advance. 
 
5.3  Attendance at Meetings.  Board members may participate 
electronically in all or part of a board meeting, including voting if: 
1)  All persons participating in the meeting are able to hear each other at the 
same time, such as by the use of speaker-phone or computer internet 
conferencing technology; and 
2)  The board member participating electronically shall have reviewed all of 
the applicable material and participated in the relevant portion of the board 
meeting regarding the topic to which the board member is voting on.  
 
5.4 Public Hearings.  Public hearings may be scheduled by the Authority 
Board at such time and at such place as the Authority Board determines to be 
appropriate to specifically solicit, public comment on certain issues.  Such 
issues may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 80



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 5 
 

• a change in any transit fare 
• a substantial change in transit service 
• a presentation of the annual budget 
• Federal Transit Administration grant applications 

 
Public notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in advance unless otherwise 
required by Federal or State regulations. 
  
5.5  Meeting Notices.  Notices of changes in the time or place of regular 
meetings or the call for a special meeting or public hearing will be provided to 
the official local newspaper(s) of general circulation and to any publications, 
television cable access or radio stations which have on file with the Clerk of 
the Board a written request to be so notified.  Such call or notice shall be 
delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be 
transacted, provided that notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in 
advance of public hearings, unless otherwise required. 
 
The Shelton-Mason County Journal is designated as the official newspaper of 
the Authority Board for the purpose of publication of legal notices and 
dissemination of public information announcements. 
 
5.6  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Authority Board, five (5) voting 
members of the Authority Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business, unless there are position vacancies, in which case a majority of 
the filled positions shall constitute a quorum. 
 
5.7  Chair.  The Chair shall open and preside at all meetings of the Authority 
Board.  In the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to preside, the Vice 
Chair shall assume the duties of presiding over the meetings of the Authority 
Board; provided, however, if the Chair is to be permanently unable to 
preside, the Authority Board shall select a new Chair for the remainder of the 
Chair’s term. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice Chair, the 
member having served on the Authority Board the longest shall serve as 
acting Chair. 
 
5.8  Conduct of Meetings.  Unless otherwise governed by the provisions of 
these Bylaws, the laws of the State of Washington or Authority Board 
resolution, Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised) shall govern the conduct of 
the Authority’s meetings.  It is the intent of the Authority to conduct the 
business in an open environment consistent with the Washington State Open 
Public Meetings Act. 
 
5.9  Order of Business and Agenda.  An order of business at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings shall be established on a meeting-by-
meeting basis according to the issues requiring discussion in any particular 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 81



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 6 
 

month.  Prior to the regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board will confer with 
the Chair on items of discussion.  The Clerk will prepare a written agenda 
including appropriate attachments, and will distribute to all members as soon 
as possible prior to the meeting but not less than 48 hours before the 
meeting. 
 
5.10  Voting/Authority Decisions.  Every voting member of the Authority 
Board shall be entitled to one vote on all issues before the Authority Board.  
All members present may vote or abstain; and abstention shall be recorded 
but will not be counted.  The act of the majority of the members present at a 
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Authority Board, 
unless a greater number is required by law.  Any member may require that 
the vote of each member on a particular matter be recorded in the minutes, 
in which case a roll call will be taken. 
 
5.11  Meeting Minutes.  The proceedings of all Authority Board meetings 
and public hearings shall be recorded and maintained and shall contain an 
accurate accounting of the Authority Board’s official action with reference to 
all matters properly before it and any public comments made.  Minutes of the 
meetings shall be provided to each Authority Board member as soon as 
practicable following each meeting.  The official copy for each meeting shall 
be approved by the Authority Board and signed by the Chair and the Clerk of 
the Board.  The official minutes of the meeting shall become a part of the 
permanent records file, maintained by the Clerk. 
 
5.12  Resolutions.  The Authority Board may require that certain actions be 
documented by way of a formal resolution, which shall be prepared by the 
Clerk and shall be approved as to form by the Legal Counsel.  Resolutions 
shall also be signed by the Chair and will be numbered, incorporated in the 
minutes, and made part of the permanent records file. 
 
5.13  Compensation.  Members of the Authority Board and non-voting 
labor representative only shall be paid compensation for attendance at 
regular and special Authority Board meetings and at any official Authority 
Board Committee meetings, not to exceed 36 such meetings per year, unless 
authorized by the Board and in no event more than 75.  Compensation shall 
be no more than the maximum rate authorized by RCW 36.57A.050 as 
presently enacted or as may be hereafter amended; provided that 
compensation shall not be paid to an elected official who is receiving regular 
full-time compensation from such government for attending such meetings.  
Any change to this rate shall require a two-thirds majority vote by the 
Authority Board. 
 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 82



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 7 
 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

6.1  Election.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be members of the Authority 
Board elected by the members by majority vote at a regular or special 
meeting of the Authority.  
 
6.2  Term.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the 
members at the first meeting in December of each year, unless it is 
determined by the Authority Board that it is in the best interest of the 
Authority Board the election should be extended in one month increments.  
In the event either becomes vacant, the members shall elect a new officer at 
the next regular meeting to serve until the next December meeting. 
 
6.3  Duties.  In addition to the powers and the duties granted by these 
Bylaws, the Chair shall have such other powers and duties as prescribed by 
law or by resolution of the Authority Board. 
 
In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the 
Chair, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all 
the restrictions upon the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall perform other duties as 
may be assigned to him or her by the Chair or by the Authority. 
 
 

VII. COMMITTEES  
 
7.1  Authority Board Committees.  In order to better facilitate the work of 
the Authority Board, the Authority Board may establish standing and/or ad 
hoc committees to address specific issues.  Each committee shall be 
composed of not more than three (3) Authority members; one member 
representing the City of Shelton, one member representing Mason County, 
and one member representing a District.  Committee Chairs and committee 
members may be designated by the Authority Chair, subject to confirmation 
by the full Authority Board.  To the extent possible, committee reports to the 
full Authority Board shall be in writing. 
 
The terms of the standing committees will coincide with the terms of the 
Authority Board officers (which recommence annually in December) at which 
time the Authority Board will review the responsibilities of the committees.  In 
the event that new committee assignments are not made at the time 
Authority Board officers are elected, the incumbent committee members shall 
serve until replacements are appointed. 
 
7.2  Special Appointments.  The Chairman may appoint Authority Board 
members to special intra- and interagency committees and councils as 
appropriate.  
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 83



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 8 
 

These special appointments will be reviewed annually to coincide with the 
terms of the Authority Board officers and the review of Authority Board 
committees. 
 
 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 
 
8.1  General Manager.  The Authority Board shall appoint a General 
Manager who shall be responsible for the administrative functions of the 
Mason Transit Authority and shall have such power and perform such duties 
as shall be prescribed by law and action of the Authority Board. 
 
8.2  Clerk of the Authority Board.  The Authority shall appoint a Clerk of 
the Authority Board who shall perform all duties as provided in these Bylaws 
and shall maintain all records of the Authority Board.  The General Manager 
shall serve as Clerk unless someone else has been specifically appointed. 
 
8.3  Legal Counsel.  Principal Legal Counsel shall be appointed by and shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Authority Board. 
 
8.4  Non-Voting Adviser to the Authority Board Representing Public.  
Applications from the public may be submitted to the voting Authority Board 
for selection and appointment, and shall serve at the pleasure of the 
Authority Board. If no applications are submitted, the position shall cease and 
close. 
 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

9.1  Checks.  All disbursements of the Mason Transit Authority shall be by 
check drawn by the appropriate Audit Officer as per Washington State law or 
as otherwise directed by Authority resolution. 
 
9.2  Notes.  All notes or other evidence of indebtedness, including bills, 
issued or incurred in the name of the Mason Transit Authority shall be signed 
by such officer, member, agent or employee of the Mason Transit Authority 
and in such manner as shall from time to time to be determined by Authority 
Board resolution. 
 
9.3  Other Legal Documents.  The Authority may authorize any officer or 
officers, agent or agents of the Mason Transit Authority, in addition to the 
officers so authorized by resolution, to enter into any contract or execute and 
deliver any instrument in the name of and behalf of the Mason Transit 
Authority and such authorization may be general and or may be confined to 
specific instances.  All written contractual obligations of the Mason Transit 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 84



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 9 
 

Authority, including but not limited to, contracts, leases and assignments, are 
to be maintained by the Clerk of the Board. 
 
9.4  Deposits.  All funds of the Mason Transit Authority shall be deposited in 
the appropriate accounts established by resolution.  The County Treasurer 
shall be the custodian of the funds, until such time as the Authority Board 
appropriates its own administrative director, and is, subject to approval by 
Authority Board resolution, authorized to invest such funds in the manner 
provided by law. 
 
9.5  Gifts.  The Authority Board may accept on behalf of Mason Transit 
Authority any contribution, gift or bequest (as long as conditions are 
consistent with state law), for any purpose of the Mason Transit Authority. 
 
9.6  Travel.  Members of the Authority Board, in order to properly and fully 
conduct official Mason Transit Authority business, may travel and incur 
expenses.    Authority Board members will receive reimbursement for 
reasonable expenses incurred while engaged in official business in 
accordance with RCW 36.57A.050 and the adopted travel policy which applies 
to all Mason Transit Authority employees.  Out-of-state travel by Authority 
Board members will be authorized by the Chair subject to annual budget 
restraints. 
 
9.7  Repealer.  The terms of these bylaws, as established by resolution, 
shall supersede all prior resolutions in conflict therewith. 
 
 

X. AMENDMENTS 
 

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the 
Authority Board, provided that copies of the proposed revisions or 
amendments shall have been made available to each Authority Board 
member as part of the agenda of the meeting at which proposed revisions or 
amendments are to be acted upon. These bylaws are adopted by Authority 
Board resolution; therefore, any amendments hereto shall be by that same 
instrument. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 12/09/91   AMENDED:  04/17/2012 
AMENDED:   11/20/07   AMENDED:  12/17/2013 
AMENDED:   02/28/08   AMENDED:  09/20/2016 
AMENDED: 07/13/10   AMENDED: 12/19/2017 
       AMENDED: 11/20/2018 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 85



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 86



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Discussion 
Subject:    2019 Work Plan 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The Executive Management Team met earlier this month to develop its plan and focus 
for 2019. The attached matrix illustrates the team’s areas of focus and the timeline. 
 
Important tasks in the work plan are the service changes, ridership and employee 
engagement.  
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Included in the annual budget. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 87



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 88



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 89



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 90



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 16, 2018 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building permit and water plans are in progress for the Belfair park and ride. 
Site permits (septic, grading, forest practices, SEPA Checklist) were submitted in 
October. 
 
Design Development: Site is design is mostly complete. A-RT is in the process of 
designing the revised building with the recent recommendations from MTA. SCJ is 
working with A-RT to revise the bus storage area to incorporate a new building 
overhang/bus cleaning area configuration. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are in progress for 
Pickering Road, Cole Road, and Pear Orchard park and rides. Contract packages/bid 
packages are anticipated to be complete by the end of November. 
 
Belfair Park and Ride:  

• SCJ submitted site permit plans to Mason County in early October. 
• SCJ submitted preliminary roundabout design plans to WSDOT in October. 

o SCJ received WSDOT comments on the roundabout package and will 
resubmit week of 11/19. 

• SCJ is in the process of preparing final roundabout design documents for 
submittal in December.  

• A-RT is leading building design. 
 
Other progress: Parsons will send over their conceptual Shelton Matlock Park and Ride 
design. SCJ will evaluate and maximize the stall count that will be feasible. Parsons, 
MTA, and SCJ will advocate to WSDOT to incorporate the full design/construction into 
Parsons contract. 
 
Project Timeline: The critical path for design of the park and ride projects remains the 
Belfair park and ride. It is anticipated that the project will be ready for bid in February. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 91



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 92



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: Informational Item 2– Informational 
Subject:   Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   November 20, 2018 

Summary for Informational Purposes: 

The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 93



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 94



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board November 20, 2018 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 95



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

20
/2

01
8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

  

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 96



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
11

/2
0/

20
18

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board November 20, 2018 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Service Review: Final recommendations are in process and will be presented to the Board in 

December. Currently, staff is reviewing the recommendations for input and suggestions. Once 
presented to the Board staff will be doing outreach to the community throughout the first quarter of 
2019 for changes to begin in June 2019. Some changes may occur in February 2019 if easily 
accommodated. 

• Park & Ride Development: Met with Architect to work on building finishes. See update on Park & Ride 
Development informational page for additional information. 

• EDC: Attended EDC Board retreat. Completed assisting the EDC with policies and procedures. 
• WSTIP:  Attended October monthly Executive Committee and Policy Review Committee meetings. 
• WSTA: Attended 4th Quarter WSTA Board Meeting. 
• CEO/GM Quarterly Meeting: Met with Clallam, Jefferson and Kitsap Transits for quarterly CEO/GM 

meeting. 
• T-CC Parking Lot:  Met with Conservation District on final design.  
• Training: Attended AWC Member Expo. 
• Pilot Bus: Phone conversation with Zen Energy Solutions and Marshall regarding possible participation 

in a Hydrogen Zero-Emission Bus Pilot. 
• Internal Activities: 

o Congressman Derek Kilmer and his district representative Kate Irwin visited MTA. 
o Met with managers for 2019 Planning Day. 
o Phone meeting with Summit Law regarding Washington Paid Sick Leave Law policy. 
o Prepared or reviewed and edited Procurement policy, Paid Sick Leave policy and Light Duty 

policy. All policies will now be reviewed the Policy Committee and presented to the Board in 
December. 

o Worked on revisions to the Non-Represented Compensation Plan. 
o Usual meetings with the Executive Team and Leadership Team. Miscellaneous meetings with 

staff. 
• Vacation!: I took a vacation the week of October 29. 

 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• Ridership is a concern Operations and I have as due to construction in Shelton we have had a 

significant drop. We have been unable to reach some areas where our riders are located. We are 
monitoring the situation and looking forward to service improvements. 

• The Executive Team will begin preparing what we have tagged “Employee Engagement Plan” to find 
ways to recruit, engage and retain employees.  

• Administrative Services Manager and Operations Manager are also working on an improved process 
for hiring drivers. 

• Concerns over rising construction costs and how that might impact MTA capital projects.  
• MTA was contacted to be part of a potential bus pilot for hydrogen fuel cell as an alternative to bio-

diesel. Marshall, Brenton and I had a phone conference to discuss the pilot with Zen Clean Engery 
Solutions and agreed to take part in the pilot should it move forward. 

 
 
 

 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 97



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

20
/2

01
8 

 
TEAM UPDATES 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
 
HR Dashboard - 67 FTE’s, plus 8 Worker Drivers, not including compensated board members. Hired 2018 – 18 
(12 Drivers, one Technical Support Analyst, one T-CC Assistant/Custodian, two Worker Drivers, one 
Custodian/Detailer, one Service Mechanic). Termed YTD 2018 – 16 (1- Worker Driver retired, 1- Ops retired, 1- 
new hire driver terminated for inability to master skills in training, 2- drivers were terminated due to 
compliance issues, 4- new hire drivers resigned early in training - not suited to the position, 1- custodian 
resigned due to the CDL component of the position, 2- resigned for better pay/location, 1- resigned due to out 
of state relocation, 3 resigned for personal reasons not related to the position.)  

HR Support  
• Utilizing SHRM’s Employee Handbook Builder, I am working on developing a refreshed/ compliant 

employee handbook.  This project is on the 2018 Work Plan. 
• Assisted several employees navigating FMLA cases. 
• Working with payroll vendor to incorporate Recruiting and Onboarding modules for a better applicant 

experience and greater HR efficiency. 
• Creating a non-driver modified duty job description to take advantage of L & I’s Stay at Work program. 
• Prepared initial draft of Fit for Duty policy to be presented in December for approval. 
• Provided new employee orientation for Service Mechanic. 
• Participated in Reasonable Suspicion Training for Supervisors.  All dispatch, supervisors and lead 

drivers have now received this important training. 
• To better protect the agency’s IT infrastructure, we implemented phishing testing and training.   

Recruiting 
• The October 2nd Driver class is progressing. Two new drivers are currently performing in-service route 

training. 
• Our next Driver class has been moved up to January 3, 2019.  We are evolving our interview process 

to include a Saturday tour for potential interviewees by presenting the life of a bus driver Q&A and bus 
ride to Olympia.  We hope to provide insight for candidates of what it is to be a bus driver before 
interview and job offer.  

Finance  
• Refinements to the 2019 Operating budget continue.  Budget narrative being completed. 
• Prepared Capital Budget. 
• Worked with managers to update the Non-rep Compensation plan included in this packet. 
• Updated the data reported for the Operations Statistics report. Now comparing rolling 12 month 

performance against previous 12 month rolling period. 
• Completed and submitted LMTAAA 2019 Operating budget.  Good news, the additional funds received 

in 2018 are also available to support the 2019 program. 
• Prepared revisions to the Procurement Policy to incorporate micro & small purchase threshold 

changes as per the Office of Management and Budget. Policy to be presented for approval in 
December. 

Training 
• Attended the WSTA-HR Committee meeting. 
• Attended the WSTIP Emerging Risk & Opportunities Committee meeting. 
• Attended AWC’s Member Expo. 
• Brian continues to invest in his learning by participating in GFOA/WFOA training that benefits the 

agency while allowing him the opportunity to earn CPE credits toward maintaining is CPA. 

MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 

Maintenance Shop and Facilities 
• The new cutaways are being delivered to Mason Transit and we started the in-servicing process. We 

are extremely excited to conclude this project and place them in service for an updated ride 
experience for our customers and drivers.  

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 98



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
11

/2
0/

20
18

  

• I received an invitation to speak to the Centralia College Diesel Program Students about shop 
management on November 21st. Talking points include: 

o Equipment purchasing and life cycles. 
o Staffing---including what MTA looks for in new employees and resumes. 
o PM programs. 
o Shop layout tooling and parts. 
o The biggest challenges and wins I have encountered while employed at MTA. 
o Regulations and how I keep up with them. 
o Maintaining a shop safety program. 
o Dealing with excessive vehicle downtime. 
o Seasonal changes and how they affect our program. 

• Preston Petty, our new service mechanic started his employment with Mason Transit on October 31st. 
Preston was most recently employed at Hunter Farms and brings a well-balanced mechanical 
background to assist with our vehicle maintenance needs. Although short staffed, the maintenance 
staff has done a fantastic job of keeping all the equipment maintained! 

• Kathy Geist and I attended the Shelton High School Career Expo on November 7th. The Expo has 
businesses, community organizations, and representatives from Washington colleges and universities 
show high school and college students the possibilities of future education, employment and careers. 
It was a wonderful opportunity to showcase Mason Transit employment opportunities to over 1,400 
high school and college students. 

 
T-CC Facility user traffic report: 

• Gym use for October was over 1,500 people this month, which included our weekly pickle ball 
program, Choice P.E., and several community events including our annual United Way Resource Fair, 
4-H Fall Fair, Halloween Bazaar, and our Guatemalan Consulate weekend sponsored by the Shelton 
School District. October was a fabulous month at the T-CC for local and out of area non-profit services 
and organizations to gather and discuss community needs, challenges, and resources available. 
CHOICE PE classes in full swing (over 100 kids a day). 

• Conference room use for October was over 60 people who attended our weekly programs (NAMI), 
United Way monthly meeting and various small tenant sponsored meetings. 

• October was full of events ranging from local vendors and organizations prep-cooking for Oysterfest, 
Holiday Bazaar, resource fairs, and school district sponsored outreach. Christmas is just around the 
corner and we are preparing for several large events: Toys for Tots; the Christmas Parade, and 
Shopping with Santa are just a few of the large events that will fill the T-CC this holiday season. 
 

T-CC Building 
• We are prepared for any inclement weather at the T-CC as we have replenished our ice melt supply 

and are working with John M. on an inclement weather plan. 
• The DoubleMap project continues and most of the Armory roof assembly is complete. Project 

continuing as weather permits. 
• We will work around the weather to pull data cables for the wireless access points to be mounted on 

the Franklin sidewalk. 
• We hope to hear something soon about the T-CC parking lot as it is now flooded and we are working 

with tenants on alternative parking options. 
• Completed monthly fire extinguisher / sprinkler inspections. 
• The freezer in the T-CC kitchen was repaired as it had a failing sensor control. 
• Supported John M. with OPs issues. 
• Ordered parts to fix armory urinals. 
• Drained T-CC drum drips. 
• Monitoring leaks in Gym roof. 
 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• Great WA shake out- MTA participated in an earthquake drill, the Great Washington Shake-Out, on 

Oct 18. 
• McDonalds – We are currently working with the City of Shelton and McDonalds to get a bus shelter 

installed on Olympic Highway North in front of McDonalds. This would be a safer solution over entering 
into the Gateway Center parking lot. 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 99



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

20
/2

01
8 

 
• New Drivers – Our two new drivers in training:  Tiffany L and Mileen M have all passed their CDL 

exam!!  Congrats!!  They are currently learning the routes and hope to be in service by Thanksgiving.  
Our next New Driver class will start on Jan 3, 2019.        

• Outreach Success stories - Kathy G. met with Mason General Hospital, Peninsula Regional Community 
Health, Keyport Military Base Resources Fair, and Oysterfest.  Kathy also attended WAPRO training, 
Moving Mason Forward meeting, Rural Leadership Development Training, Thurston Mason Behavior 
Health meeting, a branding committee for Mason General Health, TIP CAP meeting and a MC budget 
meeting for TIP CAP.  JoAnne from WSTIP came to MTA to review Van Pool Compliance and they were 
very happy with our program and procedures.   

• Operations Committee Meeting – I attended the WSTA Operations Committee Meeting Oct 24 – 26 
held at Community Transit. 

• RFP 2017-01 Service Review – Nelson/Nygaard has given us a draft service development plan that 
we are reviewing. 

• RFP 2017-02 Technology – MTA Doublemap is working on our fixed route buses!!  Kathy G- over the 
next few weeks will be on routes showing the public how to use the new software.  Josh and Jason are 
working DAR software “Tapride” should be fully operational by the end of November.   

• Road Construction in Shelton – Daily challenge, we are seeing a loss in ridership due to the 
construction challenges.  Operations have done an Outstanding Job of working these challenges and 
informing our clients each and every day!!   

• Vanpool – Usage rate for October 2018 was 50%, 8 of 16 vans were in use.   
  

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 100



 

6 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
11

/2
0/

20
18

  

 
 

2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 101



 
 7 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

20
/2

01
8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 102



November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 103



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 104



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 3 – Informational 
Subject:    Operations Statistics and Reports 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
Included is the Q3-2018 Operations Statistics report highlighting performance of 
ridership, miles, hours and applied costs allocated by miles traveled for each major 
operational category. A key change to the report for Q3 is the comparison of the most 
recent rolling 12-month period against the prior comparable 12 month rolling period 
rather than comparing the current rolling 12-month data against 2017. 
 
Also included is ridership data charted by service type for years 2016, 2017 and year-
to-date 2018. Having this visual allows us to identify trends in ridership by service type 
throughout the year and year-over-year. We are now internally charting ridership by 
routes to further analyze the cause and effect of the ups and downs of ridership each 
month. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 105



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 106



RI
D
ER

SH
IP
 D
AT

A 
CH

AR
TE
D

30
00

32
50

35
00

37
50

40
00

42
50

45
00

47
50

DA
R 
Ri
de

rs
hi
p

20
18

20
17

20
16

16
00

0

18
00

0

20
00

0

22
00

0

24
00

0

O
ut
 o
f C

ou
nt
y 
Ri
de

rs
hi
p

20
18

20
17

20
16

12
00

0

13
00

0

14
00

0

15
00

0

16
00

0

17
00

0

18
00

0

19
00

0

In
 C
ou

nt
y 
Ri
de

rs
hi
p

20
18

20
17

20
16

31
50

0

34
50

0

37
50

0

40
50

0

43
50

0

To
ta
l R

id
er
sh

ip
20

18

20
17

20
16

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 107



 2
01

8 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S
ta
tis
tic
s

Fi
xe
d 
Ro

ut
e 
(in

 c
ou

nt
y)

Ju
l-S

ep
 

20
18

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

18
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
18

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

R
ol

lin
g 

12
 

M
on

th
s

R
ol

lin
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 
12

 m
on

th
s

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
38

,9
52

46
,0
12

44
,0
70

50
,0
19

17
9,
05

3
19

5,
15

9
‐8
.3
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
37

,5
06

38
,5
44

37
,4
65

38
,3
37

15
1,
85

2
14

8,
80

4
2.
0%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
3,
05

2
3,
15

5
2,
97

6
2,
86

3
12

,0
45

11
,8
43

1.
7%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

20
7,
49

6
$ 
   
   
 

21
8,
50

6
$ 
   
   
   
  

18
3,
45

9
$ 
   
   
   
  

23
1,
88

0
$ 
   
   
   
  

84
1,
34

1
$ 
   
   
   
  

79
5,
86

0
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

5.
7%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
1.
04

1.
19

1.
18

1.
30

1.
17

9
1.
31

2
‐1
0.
1%

C
os

t/T
rip

5.
33

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

4.
75

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
16

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
64

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
70

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
08

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

15
.2
%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

12
.2
9

12
.2
2

12
.5
9

13
.3
9

12
.6
1

12
.5
6

0.
3%

C
os

t/M
ile

5.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

5.
67

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
90

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
54

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
35

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

3.
6%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

12
.7
6

14
.5
8

14
.8
1

17
.4
7

14
.8
6

16
.4
8

‐9
.8
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
68

.0
0

$ 
   
   
   
  

69
.2
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

61
.6
5

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

80
.9
9

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

69
.8
5

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

67
.2
0

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
9%

Fi
xe
d 
Ro

ut
e 
(o
ut
 o
f c
ou

nt
y)

Ju
l-S

ep
 

20
18

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

18
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
18

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

R
ol

lin
g 

12
 

M
on

th
s

R
ol

lin
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 
12

 m
on

th
s

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
36

,8
14

36
,8
23

36
,5
88

37
,3
81

14
7,
60

6
15

7,
53

6
‐6
.3
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
10

0,
37

4
10

1,
64

1
96

,6
66

97
,4
14

39
6,
09

5
42

9,
19

2
‐7
.7
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
4,
79

6
4,
78

6
4,
31

4
3,
93

9
17

,8
35

17
,9
28

‐0
.5
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

55
5,
30

4
$ 
   
   
 

57
6,
20

3
$ 
   
   
   
  

47
3,

35
4

$ 
   

   
 

58
9,

20
5

$ 
   

   
 

2,
19

4,
06

7
$ 
   
   
 

2,
03

6,
32

2
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   

7.
7%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
37

0.
36

0.
38

0.
38

0.
37

3
0.
36

7
1.
5%

C
os

t/T
rip

15
.0
8

$ 
   
   
   
  

15
.6
5

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

12
.9
4

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

15
.7
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

14
.8
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

12
.9
3

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

15
.0
%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

20
.9
3

21
.2
4

22
.4
1

24
.7
3

22
.2
1

23
.9
4

‐7
.2
%

C
os

t/M
ile

5.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

5.
67

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
90

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
54

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
74

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

16
.7
%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

7.
68

7.
69

8.
48

9.
49

8.
28

8.
79

‐5
.8
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
11

5.
78

$ 
   
   
   

12
0.
40

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

10
9.
73

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

14
9.
58

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

12
3.
02

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

11
3.
58

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

8.
3%

D
em

an
d 
Re

sp
on

se
Ju

l-S
ep

 
20

18
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
18

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

18
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
R

ol
lin

g 
12

 
M

on
th

s
R

ol
lin

g 
Pr

ev
io

us
 

12
 m

on
th

s
Va

ria
nc

e 
   

   
   

  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
10

,7
77

11
,3
70

10
,3
66

11
,0
11

43
,5
24

43
,8
95

‐0
.8
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
71

,4
24

81
,2
92

81
,5
21

78
,6
07

31
2,
84

4
32

6,
52

8
‐4
.2
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
5,

06
9

6,
24

7
6,
26

8
6,
33

1
23

,9
15

27
,7
29

‐1
3.
8%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

39
5,
14

3
$ 
   
   
 

46
0,
84

5
$ 
   
   
   
  

39
9,
19

2
$ 
   
   
   
  

47
5,
45

2
$ 
   
   
   
  

1,
73

0,
63

1
$ 
   
   
 

1,
61

8,
82

5
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   

6.
9%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
15

0.
14

0.
13

0.
14

0.
13

9
0.
13

4
3.
5%

C
os

t/T
rip

36
.6
7

$ 
   
   
   
  

40
.5
3

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

38
.5
1

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

43
.1
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

39
.7
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

36
.8
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

7.
8%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

14
.0
9

13
.0
1

13
.0
1

12
.4
2

13
.0
8

11
.7
8

11
.1
%

C
os

t/M
ile

5.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

5.
67

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
90

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
96

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

11
.6
%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

2.
13

1.
82

1.
65

1.
74

1.
82

1.
58

15
.0
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
77

.9
5

$ 
   
   
   
  

73
.7
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

63
.6
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
    

75
.1
0

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

72
.3
7

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

58
.3
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

24
.0
%

N o tN o t N o t

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 108



 2
01

8 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S
ta
tis
tic
s

W
or
ke
r D

riv
er

Ju
l-S

ep
 

20
18

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

18
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
18

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

R
ol

lin
g 

12
 

M
on

th
s

R
ol

lin
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 
12

 m
on

th
s

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
12

,0
44

12
,0
35

12
,5
37

11
,8
53

48
,4
69

48
,3
38

0.
3%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
15

,4
10

15
,6
55

15
,1
10

13
,5
04

59
,6
79

60
,0
28

‐0
.6
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
63

4
64

5
62

3
55

1
2,
45

3
2,
46

9
‐0
.7
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

53
,5
92

$ 
   
   
   

52
,5
59

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

50
,0
68

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

47
,7
14

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

20
3,
93

3
$ 
   
   
   
  

17
6,
83

7
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

15
.3
%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
78

0.
77

0.
83

0.
88

0.
81

2
0.
80

5
0.
9%

C
os

t/T
rip

4.
45

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

4.
37

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
99

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
03

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
21

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
66

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

15
.0
%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

24
.2
9

24
.2
9

24
.2
5

24
.5
1

24
.3
3

24
.3
1

0.
1%

C
os

t/M
ile

3.
48

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

3.
36

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
31

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

3.
42

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

2.
95

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

16
.0
%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

18
.9
9

18
.6
7

20
.1
2

21
.5
1

19
.7
6

19
.5
8

0.
9%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
84

.4
9

$ 
   
   
   
  

81
.5
5

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

80
.3
7

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

86
.6
0

$ 
   
   
   
   
    

83
.1
4

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

71
.6
2

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

16
.1
%

Ex
pr
es
s 
Ro

ut
es

Ju
l-S

ep
 

20
18

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

18
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
18

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

R
ol

lin
g 

12
 

M
on

th
s

R
ol

lin
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 
12

 m
on

th
s

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
8,
02

5
9,
39

5
9,
35

1
9,
16

9
35

,9
40

35
,0
98

2.
4%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
25

,1
71

25
,4
34

25
,1
37

25
,0
47

10
0,
78

9
12

7,
72

2
‐2
1.
1%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
1,
36

3
1,
35

5
1,
22

4
1,
07

1
5,
01

4
4,
94

5
1.
4%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s 

13
9,
25

5
$ 
   
   
 

14
2,
50

2
$ 
   
   
   
  

12
3,
09

1
$ 
   
   
   
  

15
1,
49

6
$ 
   
   
   
  

55
6,
34

3
$ 
   
   
   
  

64
3,
70

9
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐1
3.
6%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
32

0.
37

0.
37

0.
37

0.
36

0.
27

29
.8
%

C
os

t/T
rip

17
.3
5

$ 
   
   
   
  

15
.1
7

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

13
.1
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

16
.5
2

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

15
.4
8

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

18
.3
4

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐1
5.
6%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

18
.4
6

18
.7
7

20
.5
3

23
.3
9

20
.1
0

25
.8
3

‐2
2.
2%

C
os

t/M
ile

5.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

5.
60

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
90

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
52

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
04

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

9.
5%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

5.
89

6.
93

7.
64

8.
56

7.
17

7.
10

1.
0%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
10

2.
14

$ 
   
   
   

10
5.
15

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

10
0.
53

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

14
1.
45

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

11
0.
96

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

13
0.
17

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐1
4.
8%

To
ta
l S
er
vi
ce
 

Ju
l-S

ep
 

20
18

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

18
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
18

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

R
ol

lin
g 

12
 

M
on

th
s

R
ol

lin
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 
12

 m
on

th
s

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
10

6,
61

2
11

5,
63

5
11

2,
91

2
11

9,
43

3
45

4,
59

2
47

7,
00

1
‐4
.7
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
24

9,
88

5
26

2,
56

6
25

5,
89

9
25

2,
90

9
1,
02

1,
25

9
1,
09

1,
14

2
‐6
.4
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
14

,9
14

16
,1
87

15
,4
06

14
,7
55

61
,2
62

64
,6
12

‐5
.2
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s 

1,
35

0,
78

9
$ 
   

1,
45

0,
61

5
$ 
   
   
 

1,
22

9,
16

4
$ 
   
   
 

1,
49

5,
74

7
$ 
   
   
 

5,
52

6,
31

6
$ 
   
   
 

5,
27

1,
55

3
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   

4.
8%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
43

0.
44

0.
44

0.
47

0.
45

0.
44

1.
8%

C
os

t/T
rip

12
.6
7

$ 
   
   
   
  

12
.5
4

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

10
.8
9

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

12
.5
2

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

12
.1
6

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

11
.0
5

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

10
.0
%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

16
.7
5

16
.2
2

16
.6
1

17
.1
4

16
.6
7

16
.8
9

‐1
.3
%

C
os

t/M
ile

5.
41

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

5.
52

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
80

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
91

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

5.
41

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
  

4.
83

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

12
.0
%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

7.
15

7.
14

7.
33

8.
09

7.
42

7.
38

0.
5%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
90

.5
7

$ 
   
   
   
  

89
.6
2

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

79
.7
9

$ 
   
   
   
   
    

10
1.
37

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

90
.2
1

$ 
   
   
   
   
   

81
.5
9

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

10
.6
%

N o t

*D
ire

ct
 P
ro
je
ct
 E
xp
en
se
s i
nc
lu
de

 o
nl
y 
th
os
e 
co
st
s t
o 
su
pp

or
t O

pe
ra
tio

ns
, D

isp
at
ch
, W

or
ke
r D

riv
er
s,
 D
riv

er
s,
 M

ai
nt
en
an

ce
, &

 B
el
fa
ir,
 n
ot
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
ad

m
in
ist
ra
tiv
e 
co
st
s.
  C
os
ts
 a
re
 a
llo
ca
te
d 
by
 %
 

of
 m

ile
s f
or
 e
ac
h 
se
rv
ic
e 
ty
pe
. *
To
ta
l S
er
vi
ce
 d
oe
s n

ot
 in
cl
ud

e 
Va

np
oo

l, 
Vo

lu
nt
ee
r D

riv
er
, S
qu

ax
in
, R

ad
ic
h 
or
 T
‐C
C.
 

N o tN o t

November 20, 2018 Reg Board Mtg 109


	ADPA112.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	October 16, 2018
	Allyn
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	ADP7DF2.tmp
	2019

	ADPA365.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE




